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TELFORD HOMES LIMITED

GROUP STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The Directors present their Strategic Report and the financial statements of Telford Hemes Limited and subsidiaries (collectively known
as the "Group") for the year ended 31 December 2022,

Business model

Telford Hormes Limited ('Telford Homes") is a developer of residential-led, mixed-use sites in London. Established in 2000, the Group has
grown to become one of Lendon's largest developers. At the year end the Group had over 280 employees dedicated to developing the
homes and creating the places that London needs.

The goal is to continue to deliver new homes, o heip address the chronic shortage in London, focusing particularly on the growing Build
to Rent market.

The Group focuses an brownfield opportunities in locations across London where the need for homes far exceeds supply. The Group
invests in the communities we create through our sustainability strategy: ‘Building a Living Legacy'.

The Group has extensive knowledge and expertise in acquiring land, obtaining planning permissions and designing and building high
quality developments.

Buildings are bespoke designs consisting of various housing tenures, alongside commercial properties and community buildings.

The Group's customers include institutional investors In the Build to Rent sector, hpusing associations, individual buy-to-let investors and
OWNer-occupiers.

Section 172{1} statement

The Direclors of Telford Homes have acted in accordance with their duties codified in law, which include their duty to act in the way in
which they consider, in good faith, would be most likely 1o promote the success of the Group and Company for the benefit of its members
as a whole, having regard to the stakeholders and matters set out in section 172(1) of the Companies Act 2006.

Section 172 considerations are embedded in decision making at Board level and throughout the Group. Our vision and purpose are sel
out in this Strategic Report ang the Directors' Report, as are the risks facing our organisation and the mitigating action we take, and cur
engagement with employees.

Business review

Revenue, excluding the Graup's share of joint ventures, was £296.3 million (2021: £281.8 million}.

The group made a loss before tax of £18.4 million (2021: profit before tax of £7.8 million) prior to exceptional losses due to building safety
provisions, onerous build to rent contracts and the refurbishment of a listed residential tower (note 4},

Loss before tax was £182.6.1 million (2021: £14.2 million).
In May 2022 the Group and Company signed the Buiiding Safety Pledge to fund or remediate critical fire safety works on buildings over

11 meters in England on buildings it has developed over the past 30 years. The amounts provided reflect the current best estimate of the
cost of works required. However, this estimate may be updated as work progresses or as government legislation and regulations evolve.

The Group centinues to invest in new opportunities and grow its pipeline as it aims to become London's leading build to rent developer,



GRCUP STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 (Continued)

Strategy

There continues to be a shortage of new homes in London. The Group's goal is continue to deliver homes, principally through the
strategic focus nn Build to Rent, and, in deing so, help to address this shutlage in one of the world's greatest cities.

A key Build to Rent developer and pariner
The Group is building a reputation as one of the Build 1o Rent developers of choice in London, whilst expanding knowledge and
understanding of the sector lo become a go to partner.

Broadening our geographic fogus,
The Graup has imprsved access o land opportunitics and increased Lhe polential for new relatienships by enlarging its desired area of

operation across London and t6 commuter towns around London. This also enables The Group to target Build to Rent development
cpportunities in new and emerging locations. The Group has proven that it has the knowledge and expertise tc successfully expand its
geographic harizons.

Reducing exposure to market risks and debt

Increased focus on Build to Rent delivers enhanced capital returns, requiring less equity invesiment and reducing reliance on debt
finance. It de-risks each scheme at an early stage and therefore reduces the economic risks inherent in selling hemes to individuals,
particularly during market downturns.

Driving responsible business agenda

The Group recognises that in order to maintain and enhance a strong brand and reputation it must continue to deliver responsibly across
a number of core areas of the business. These include the quality of finished product and level of customer service, health and safety and
sustainability performance, corporate governance and the professional conduct of our employees.

Principat risks and uncertainties

The Group's financial and operational performance is subject to a number of risks. The Board is ultimately accountable for effective risk
management within the Group. The Board has developed a set of risk management policies, procedures and conirols, and maintains
oversight through regular reviews. The risk management process is designed to identify, evaluate and mitigate, where possible, the
significant risks we face. The risk environment in which we operate continues to evolve and this is reflected in the principal risks and
uncertainties that are set out below. The principal risks identified have been assessed based en likelihood and impact, both before and
after mitigation through the Group's operations and policies.

Regulation
Potential impact

Changes in laws and regulations can have a direct impact on the Group, including the delivery programme and cost of the Group's
developments.

Mitigation

The impact of new laws and regulations is monitored at an early stage through attendance at indusiry working groups and contributing to
building regulation discussions in the appropriate forums.

Regulatory changes are commuriicated throughout the business and operations are planned and amended accordingly.

Commentary

Building regulations will undoubtedly continue to go through a year of change and evolution.

Pglitical outlook

Potential impact

Changes in both local and national Government can have a direct bearing on the regulatory and economic environment.

Mitigation

Palitical change is outside of the Group's control, however, there is broad consensus amengst all main pelitical parties that more needs to
be done to improve the supply of new housing.

Commentary
It is anticipated that the Government can now focus on domestic issues, including the continued supply of new homes and cost of living
crisis.



TELFORD HOMES LIMITED
GROUP STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 (Continued)

Reputation

Potential impact

Reputation is vital to the Group and any issues thal damage it could have a material impact an our operations.

Mitigation

The Group strives to maintain its reputation and brand across all areas of the business including product quality, customer satisfaction,
relationships and partnerships built on mutual trust, our health and safety record, sustainability and compliance with all laws and
regulations.

Commentary

The Group is an industry leader in the HomeViews customer recommendation rankings, Achieving a 96% customer satisfaction rate
emphasises our strong focus on both producing a quality product and looking after our customers.

Cyber
Potential impact
Failure of the Group’s IT systems and the security of internal systems, data and websites could have a significant impact on our business.

Mitigation

The Group's IT systems are protected by anti-virus software and firewalls that are frequently updated. All systems are backed up and
data is stored off-site. The Group also uses a third party to test and accredit our cyber security,

Commentary

The enhanced controls and procedures that we have recently implemented recognise that cyber threats are increasingly more
saphisticated and can create significant disruption to organisations.

Sustainability

Patential impact

Failure to address sustainability issues could affect the Group's ability to acquire land, gain planning permission, manage its ESG
{Environmental, Social and Governance) reputation effeclively, and address the demand for sustainable living.

Mitigation

‘Building a Living Legacy' (BLL) is the Group's strategy to creale places that will stand the test of time by making a positive long-term
contnbution te London's local communities and the environment. It is underpinned by the Groups 2030 Journey {Recadmap) and
objectives, to help ensure that sustainability risks are recognised and addressed. Given the rapidly changing ESG environment that we
operate within, we continue to maintain our BLL Risks and Uncertainties Register along with a biennial materiality assessmeni.

Commentary
We are proud to be ranked as the UK's most sustainable housebuilder in 2022 by NextGeneration for the 3rd year in succession, and for
the 4th consecutive year we also received a gold award.

Planning process

Paotential impact

Delays in achieving suitable planning permissions can increase financing costs, delay profit recognition and impact on our ability to invest
equity into new opportunities. Failure to achieve a suitable planning permission may lead to cost write-offs or reduced margins on
individual developments.

Mitigation

A planning risk assessment is conducted prior to any land purchase. Strong relationships are maintained with local authorities, planning
officers and focal communities to best understand their requirements, underlying policy and planning prospects. While this cannot remave
planning risks, it mitigates them as much as possible.

Cammentary

The Board ensures that the Group is not overexposed to planning risks by limiting the total investment in sites without a planning
permission at any one time.

Build eost and programme

Potential impact

The efficient, timely delivery of construction projects and the availability of materials and labour at an economic rate are critical to the
Group's profits, cash flows and reputation.

Mitigation

Telford Homes retains the role as main contracter on most of its developments. This enables planning of the construction programme and
timely management of the tender process, to reduce the risk of delays and lo achieve competitive rates. We secure rales as early as
possible in the development process and closely monitor all construction costs. We are working in partnership with subcontractors and
make prompt payments to build mutually beneficial relationships.

Comimentary
We have a strong track record of working with our subcontractors and identifying issues with labour and materials shortages at an early
slage and plan for those accordingfy.



TELFORD HOMES LIMITED
GROUP STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 (Continued)

innovation

Potential impact

The construction industry needs to innovate to help address a shortage of skilled labour and the need to accelerate the delivery of new
homes. The Group must ensure it is always up to date with innovation.

Mitigation

We have a strong track record of undertaking complex schemes in challenging locations by using innovative design, procurement and
building solutions in parinership with our supply chain, Cur Innovation Steering Committee continues to steer the direction of
workstreams, reviewing new innovation ideas and ensuring these ideas meet the business needs.

Commentary

We are assessing Modern Methods of Construction and implementing them where we can demonstrate value, this is also in response o
varying client and customer expectations.

Access to land

Potential impact

New land opportunities need to be sourced in appropriate locations and where optimum planning consents can be obtained. The appraisal
process that determines the price paid for land is critical in maintaining margins andg return on equity at acceptable levels.

Mitigation

The Group's strong relationships with land owners and advisors plays a key role in our ability to acquire new sites. A robust land
appraisal process ensures each project is financially viable and consistent with the Group’s strategy.

Commentary

The Group has a strong reputation for acting quickly in purchase negotiations and working closely in partnership with a vendor. This
means we are often approached off-market or put on restricted shortlists,

Retain and attract employees

Potential impact

An inability to recruit and retain employees with appropriate skills and experience could have a damaging effect on the Group’s
operations,

Mitigatior

The Group's supportive culture and core people values are important factors in attracting and retaining employees. In addition, our HR
programme includes succession planning and a comprehensive trainee scheme, whilst our Academy will deliver bespoke training
programmes across the Group. Qur remuneration packages are benchmarked against industry standards 1o ensure competitiveness. An
annual employee engagement survey is used to identify any areas for improvement.

Caommentary
Skilled employees are critical to delivering the Group's growth strategy and we have an excellent track record in both retaining employees
and recruitment.

Credit

Pofential impact

Failure or significant delays in receiving contractual payments can impact on our cash flow position, Having over-reliance an any one
partner could intensify this effect.

Mitigation

The Group transacts with a number of reputable erganisations with solid financial standings and has legally binding contracts in place that
give security over payments, mcluding parent company guarantees where necessary.

Commentary

The Group has due diligence controls in place to mitigate credit risk as much as is possible.

Economic environment

Potential impact

Demand for the Group’s hemes is dependent on economic confidence. This is heavily influenced by factors outside the Group’s control
such as interest rates, the availability and cost of morigage finance, taxation, rental incomes, unemployment, and increasing consumer
costs for other goods and services.

Mitigation

Forward sales are being secured with housing associations and through Build to Rent contracts, giving greater certainty over cash flows
and generating higher capital returns. The Group considers the prevailing economic environment before committing to significant
transactions or events such as land purchases and sales launches,

Commentary
The economic environment is manitored on a continuous basis and mitigated where possible, by the Board, with the appropriate action
being taken in a timely manner.
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GROUP STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 (Continued)

Health and safety

Potential impact

A deterioration in the Group’s health and safety standards could put employees, contractors, site visitors or the general public at risk of
injury or death and could lead to criminal or civil litigation resulting in penalties that damage our reputation.

Mitigation

Investment in training, the promoticn of health and safety to all employees and stakeholders through extensive policies and procedures to
ensure high standards are maintained. Only engaging with stakeholders that share our ethos in working to the highest health and safety
standards. The Group has a dedicated nealth and safety team who conduct regular health and safety audits across the business. Our
health ang safety management system is accredited and regularly audited by the British Standards [nstitute. We invest in a rigorous
health and safely training programme 10 ensure that all employees have the appropriate skills and knowledge.

Commentary
The Group maintains an ongoing focus on health and safety to manage the risks inherent in the construction process.

Liquidity

Potential impact

Construction and property development can be a very capital-intensive business with significant cash inflows and outflows. Accurately
forecasting cash flows is therefore vital to the success of the Group.

Mitigation

The Group maintains a detailed cash flow forecast which extends five years ahead and is subject to continual re-assessment and
sensitivity analysis to ensure it is not operating beyond its financial capacity. This forecast is reviewed by the Chief Financial and
Operating Officer on a regular basis. The Groups strategic focus has moved t¢ focus more on forward funded or co-invest build ta rent
sales to investors which reduce the need for equity and liguidity risk of the business. The Group also has excellent refationships with its
banking partners and can secure debt funding against its developments as needed. The Group also now has the wider support of its
ultimate parent company, CBRE Group Inc, which is able to provide support in terms of debt facilities and also intercompany support.

Commentary
The Group has continued to invest in land and work in progress and continues to ensure it has adequate measures in place lo reduce and
offset any liquidity risks as best possibie.

Key performance indicators

The Group monitors performance against its strategic objectives through a series of Key Performance Indicators (KPls), with targets
being set annually and monitored throughout the year. These targets focus on areas such as profitability and efficiency, development
pipeline, employee retention rate, health and safety, and susiainability.

This report was approved by the board on 23 June 2023 and signed on it's behalf by

My &Q«

Director



TELFORD HOMES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic report, the Directors' report and the Group and Company financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Parent Company financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they
have elected to prepare both the Group and the Company financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and applicable law.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements uniess they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of the Group's profit or loss for that year. In preparing each of the Group and Farent
Company financial statements, the directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
[ make judgements and estimates that are reascnable, relevant and reliable;
. state whether they have been prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the

requirements of the Companies Act 2006;

. assess the Group and Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern; and

. use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend te liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions
and disclose with reascnable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Parent Company and enable them to ensure that its financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2008. They are responsible for such internal contral as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and have general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregutarities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company’s website.
Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in cther jurisdictions.

Each of the Directors, whose names are listed on page 1, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:
] the Group and Company financial statements, which have been prepared in accerdance with international accounting
slandards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
tinancial position and profit of the Group and Company; and

. the Directors’ Report and Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the
position of the Group and the Company, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.



TELFORD HOMES LIMITED
GROUP DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
The Directors present their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022,

Principal activity
The pnincipal activity of the Group Is property development.

Result and dividend

Less after income tax for the year ended 31 December 2022 was £153,154 000 after exceptional losses of £174.215,000 due to building safety provisions,
oneraus build to rent cantracts and the refurbishment of a listed residential tower {2021: £11,670,000 after an exceptional loss of £22,000,000 made on the
refurbishment of a listed residential tower).

The Direclors have nol recommended a hinal dividend for the year. No interim dividend was paid.

Geing concern

The Directors have reviewed the Group's budget and forecast for the forthcoming 12 months from the date that these financial statemenis have been
approved and have reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources, including support from the wider CBRE Group as required, to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future, The Group has therefore adopted the going concern basis of preparing its financial statements.

Directors and Directors’ interests
Details of the Directors of the Company are shown on page 1. The Directors have no interest in the shares of the Cempany.

Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance

The Company maintains appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance in respect of tself and its Directors and Officers. The Directors may also be
indemnified in accordance with the Company's Arlicles of Association and to the maximum extent permitted by law, although ne such indemnities are 1n
place currently. The insurance does not, and any indemnities if granted would not, provide cover where the relevant Director or Officer has acted fraudulently
or dishonestly.

Share capital
As at 31 December 2022 the Company's share capital consisted of 935.950,669 Issued and fully paid ordinary shares with a nominatl value of 1¢ pence per
share. The holders of crdinary shares are enlitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All shares are held within the CBRE Group.

Employees

The Group places considerable value on the invalvement of its emplayees and it is the Group's policy to keep them informed of all relevant matiers on a
regular basis. Telford Homes is an equal opporiunities employer and all apphcations for employment are considered fully on the basis of suitability far the
job.

Political and charitable donations

The Group made no political donations in the financial year. The Greup made chantable donations of £77,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 {2021:
£53.000). These donations were made to 2 number of different chanties supporting a range of good causes.

Total greenhouse gas emissions

Year ended Year ended
Greenhouse gas emissions 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Scope 1 emissions (t CO2e) 1) 199,486 802 .60
Scope 2 emissions {1 CO2e) 12 370.94 374 58
Scope 3 emissions (t CO2e) 13) 391.95 380.65
Totai {t CO2e) 962.35 1,567.83
Carbon intensity t CO2e per full-time employee 2.89 4.78

{1) We measure scope 1 direct em ss'ons relating to office. sales developrment site aclivies and travel d esel combusiion on gur sites and business travel from Company leased vehicles
(2} We measure scope 2 indirect emissions for purchased electncity and heat for all our sites and offices, Our head office switched to a green tanff supply from November 2018

(33 We measure scope 3 other indirect enmissions relating 1o business avel by road and an

Total ki were 1818 211 year ended 31 Decemper 2022 (December 2021 5,150 875;.

The data given avove 1s for tre year end 31 December Th s Informaton 18 calculated on an annuat basis

Methodology

Greenhouse gas emissions are reported in accordance with the World Business Council for Sustainable Development (WBCSD) & World Resources
Institute (WRY) Greenhouse Gas Protocol GHG Cerporate Accounting and Reporting Standard. Revised Edition and scope 3 standards; and adheres to the
best practice reporting principles of relevance, completeness. consistency transparency and accuracy

In conducting the verification, RPS used the appropriate verification planning. valdation, GHG assessment and evaluation steps in accordance with the
requirements of 13014064 3. and in adherance to the standard’s principles of independence, ethical conduct. fair presentation and due professional care.



TELFORD HOMES LIMITED
GROUP DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 (continued)

Disclosure of information to auditor

Each of the Directors who held oftice at the date of approval of these financial statements confirms that, sc far as he or she 1s aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Company's external auditor (s unaware and that he or she has taken all the steps that he or she cught to have taken as a
Director in arder to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's external auditor 1s aware of that
information.

Independent Auditor
Pursuant to section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, KPMG LLP will be deemed to be reappointed as Independent Auditor for the year ending 31 December
2023.

This report was approved by the board on 23 June 2023 and signed on its behalf by

My S

Anne Theresa Kavanagh
Director

Registered office
Telford House
Queensgate
Britannia Road
Waltham Cross
Herts

EN8 7TF



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMEERS OF TELFORD HOMES LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Telford Homes Limited (“the Company”) for the year eénded 31 December 2022
which comprise the consclidated statement of profit and loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the Group
and Company statements of changes in equity, the Group and Company statements of cash flows and related notes, including
the accounting policies in note 1.

In our opinion:

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Company's affairs as at 31
December 2022 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended;

. the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards;

. the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards; and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accaordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {"ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities are described below. We have tulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Group in

accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the Group
or the Company or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the group and the company’s financial position
means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant
doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements
("the going concern year”).

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Group's business medel and analysed
how those risks might affect the Group and Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going
concern period.

Qur conclusions based on this work:

. we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate;

M we have not identified, and concur with the directors' assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty related
to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or the Company's
ahility to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are not a gquarantee
that the Group or the Company will continue in operation,

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations - ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due fo fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that could indicate an
incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures included:

. enquiring of management as to the Group's high-level policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, and
the Group's channel for “whistleblowing”, as well as whether they have knewledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud;

. reading Board meeting minutes;

. using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.

10



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TELFORD HOMES LIMITED
(Continued)
We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud throughout

the Audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possible pressures to meet profit targets, we perform procedures to
address the risk of management override of controls and the risk of fraudulent revenue recognition, in particular the risk that
revenue is recorded in the wrong year and the risk that Group and component management may be in a position toc make
inappropriate accounting entries.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

In determining the audit procedures, we took into account the results of our evaluation and testing of the operating
effectiveness of the Group-wide fraud risk management controls.

We also performed procedures including:

. identifying journal entries to test for all full scope components based on risk criteria and comparing the identified
entries to supporting documentation. These included those posted to unusual accounts and accounts related to
fraud risk.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financial
statements from our general commercial and sector experience, through discussion with the management (as required by
auditing standards) and discussed with the management the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and
regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Group is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financial reporting
legislation (including related companies legislation), distributable profits legislation and taxation legislation and we assessed
the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could have a
material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the imposition of fines or litigation or
the loss of the Group's license to operate. We identified the following areas as those most likely to have such an effect: health
and safety, anti-bribery, employment law, regulatary capital and liquidity and certain aspects of company legislation
recognising the nature of the Group's activities. Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-
compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the management and inspection of regulatory and legal
correspondence, if any. Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant
correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

Strategic report and Directors’ report

The Directors are responsible for the Strategic report and the Directors’ report. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Qur responsibility is to read the Strategic report and the Directors' report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our
financial statements audit work, the infarmation therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or
our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

L we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report;

. in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial
statements; angd

. in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

gl



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TELFORD HOMES LIMITED
(Continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for cur audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
L] certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 7, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is necessary 1o
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
assessing the Group and Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or errar and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpase. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyane other than the Company and the Company’'s members, as a body, for our audit
waork, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Craig Steven-Jennings (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accoumtants

15 Canada Square

Canary Wharf

Lendon

E14 5GL

Date: 23 June 2023
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TELFORD HOMES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Note £000 £000

Revenue 296,300 281,770
Cost of sales {294,740) (258,673)
Gross profit 1,560 23,097
Building safety costs (143,205) -
Impairment of investments (9.437) -
Administrative expenses {39,343) {37,838)
Selling expenses (2.170) (3,373)
Share of results of joint ventures 1,357 3,982
Operating loss (191,238) (14,182)
Finance income 212 951
Finance costs (1,589) (1,012)
Loss before income tax (192,615) {14,243)
Income tax credit 39,461 2,573
Loss for the year after income tax (153,154) {11,670)

All activities are in respect of continuing operations.

The notes on pages 18 to 36 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TELFORD HOMES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
£000 £000
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (items that may be subsequently
reclassified into profit or loss) - .
Increase in trade and other receivables 5.278 -
Decrease in Investments In Joint ventures (5.278) -
Loss for the year (153,154} (11,670)
Total comprehensive loss for the year {153,154} {11,670}

The notes on pages 18 to 36 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




TELFORD HOMES LIMITED

GROUP AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

Group Group Company Company
31 December 2022 31 December 2021 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Non current assets
Goodwill 9 289 289 - -
Investments 10 - - 23,037 23,037
Investments in joint venlures 10 47.847 63.779 - -
Property and equipmont 1M 1005 5119 4,003 5,11%
Deferred income tax assets 12 43,093 4,890 44,973 4,409
95,232 74177 72,013 32,565
Current assets
inventories 13 175,484 227275 101,004 161,890
Trade and other receivables 14 134.238 108.508 214,396 211,207
Cash and cash equivalents 15 4,337 38,348 4,302 38,113
314,069 37411 319,702 411,210
Total assets 409,301 448,308 391,715 443,775
Non current llabilities
Trade and other payables 16 (868) (1489) {(177) (867)
Borrowings 17 {2,395 (3,223) (2,399) {3.223)
Provisions 21 (88,958 - (88 958} -
(92,221) (4,712) (91.530) {4.090)
Current liabilities
Bank ovardraft 15 (6,446) - (6,446} -
Trade and cther payables 16 (126,818} (73.647) {144 589) {94,908)
Borrowings 17 (924) 143,977) (924) (43,977)
Current income tax liabilites (2,242) (3.073) (116) {118}
Provisions 21 (10,807) - (10,967) -
{147,335) {120,697) {162,982) {138,001}
Total labilities (239,556) {125,409) {254,512} (143,091)
Net assets 169,745 322,893 137,203 300,684
Capital and reserves
Issued share capital 18 93,595 93 595 93,685 93,595
Share premium 104,799 109.799 109,799 109,799
{Accumulated loss)/Retained earnmngs (33.649) 119.505 (66,191) 97,290
Total equity 169,745 322,899 137,203 300,584

The Company made a loss for the year of £163 831,000 (2021 loss of £18,174.000). A significant propartion of the Groups results for the year to 31 December 2022 and
year ended 31 December 2021 are generated through its joint venture ennties,

The notes cn pages 18 to 36 form an integral part of Ihese consolidated financial statements.

These financial statements were authonsed for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

My NG

Anne Theresa Kavanagh
Direcior

Registered number; 04118370
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TELFORD HOMES LIMITED

GROUP AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Share capital Share premium  Retained earnings Total equity
Group statement of changes in equity £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2021 93,595 109,799 131,175 334,569
Loss for the year - - (11.870) (11.670)
Balance at 31 December 2021 93,595 109,799 119,505 322,899
Loss for the year - - (153,154) {153.154)
Balance at 31 December 2022 93,595 109,799 {33,649) 169,745

Share capital Share premium  Retained earnings Total equity
Company 1t of changes in equity £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2021 93,595 109,799 112,964 316,358
Loss for the year - - (18.174) (18.174)
Ohnidends recerved - - 2,500 2,500
Balance at 31 December 2621 93,595 109,799 97,290 300,684
Loss for the year - - {163.831) (163.831)
Dividends received - - 350 350
Balance at 31 December 2022 93,595 109,799 (66,197) 137,203

The notes an pages 18 to 36 form an integral part of these consohdated financial stalements.



TELFORD HOMES LIMITED

GROUP AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Group Group Company Company
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

Cash flow from operating activities
Operating loss (191.238) (14,182) {205,572) {21.203)
Depreciation 1,497 1,472 1,497 1472
Impairment of work In progress 21,573 - 21,573 -
Impairment of investments {9,437} - 19,437 -
Adjustment 1o operating profit in respect of IFRS 16 1975) {810) (975) (2u)
Diocreasc/(Inercase) wi nvenluies dnd wotk In progress, 30,564 (14,306) 39.669 (4.826)
Increase in recevables {25,730} {40,112} {3,189 (55,478)
Increase in payables 152,348 23,632 148,785 43,628
Share of resutts from joint ventures {1,357y {3,992} - -
(22.757) 48 478) (7.649) (37.347}
Interest paid and debt 1ssue costs (1.761) {1,928) (1,680) (1,859}
Income tax {paid)received 527 2,131 1,761 1,850
Cash flow from operating activities (23,991 (48,225) (1.578) {37,356}

Cash flow from investing activities
Distrbutions from joint ventures 26,726 12,278 9,787 2,500
Purchase of property, plant & equipment (308) (81} (308) (81)
Interest receved 212 705 838 327
Cash flow from investing activities 26,630 12,902 10,417 2,746

Cash flow from financing activities
Nel (decrease)/increase n bank kans (43,096) 17,119 (43,096) 17,119
Cash flow from financing activities {43,096) 17,119 {43,096) 17,119
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 140,457) {18,204) {40,257) (17,491}
Cash and cash eguvalents brought forward 38.348 56,592 38,113 55,604
Cash and cash equivalents carried forward {2,109) 38,343 {2,144) 38,113

Cash and cash equivalents inciudes bank overdrafts that are repayadle on demand,

The notes on pages 18 to 36 form an integral part of these consohdaled financial statements.



TELFORD HOMES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2022

1 Signifi ing p

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have teen prepared n accordance with applicable [nternational Finantial Reporting Standards (FRS) ncluding

International Accounting Standards {|AS) and IFRS Interpretations Cemmiitee (FRS IC} interpretations a5 adopted for use in lhe European
Union and with those parts of the Companies Acl 2006 applicaple to companies reporting under [FRS

These financial statements present infarmation of the Group and Company

Going congGern

The financial statements have been prepared on a gong concern basis. which the Direclors censider to be appropnate for the followang reasons.

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for a period of 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements which indicate
that the Graup will have sufficient funds, through funding from ts utimate parent company. CBRE Group, Inc.. 1@ meet s labiities as they fall
due for that year. Forecasts buft n relevant sensitivibes and potental impact on revenue and the Graup's forecast cash position for the
fareseeable fujuse. Those forecasts are dependent on CBRE Group, Inc providing addihonal financial suppart during that year, GCBRE Group,
Inc. has indicated its intention to continue to make avalabie such funds as are needed by the Group for the year covered by the forecasts As
with any cempany placing reliance on other group entities for financial support. the Directors acknowledge that there can be no certainty that this
suppart will continue alihough, at the date of appraval of these financial statements, they have no reason to believe that it will not do so.

Consequently, the Directors are confident that the Group will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its liabilites as they fall due for at least 12
months from the date of approval of the financial statements and therefare have prepared the financial staterments on a going concern basis.

Tre preparation of financial statements in confarmity with IFRSs as adopted by the U requires the use of estimates and assumptions that aflect
the reported amounts of assets and liabiltes at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses dunng
the reporting year Aithough these estmates are Dased on the Cirectars’ best knowiedge of the amounts, events or achions, actual resufts
ultimately may differ from these estmales. The most significant estimales made by the Dwreclors m these financial statements are set out in
‘Critcal aecounting Judgements and key sources of estimabion uncertainty’ on page 24.

The Group has adopted IFRS 10. IFRS 11. IFRS 12 and JAS 28 {revised) ang Group's share of the statutory results from jaint ventures 1s
accounted for under the equity method Therefore the Group's share of the results 1 joint ventures 1S presented in one bne in the ncome
slatement and the statutory balance sheet includes one fime representing the Group's investment in jont veniures. Contraciual arrangements
where no separale legal entiy 1s estabhshed follow the requirements for jointly cantrolled assets.

Accounting palicies

The accounting policies of the Group have bean applied consistently for all years presented in these financal statements

a Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements mclude he financial stalements of the Company and its subsdianes and the Group's share of resulis of
joinl ventures. The resulis of subsidiaries and jaint ventures acquired or disposed of dunng the year are ncluded in the financial staterments
from the effective dale of acquistion or up lo the effective dale of disposal, as appropriate. All ntra-Group transactions, balances. income and
expenses are elminated on consolidation.

Exemptians

The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption availlable under Section 408 of the Compames Act 2006 and have not presentad an
income statement or staterment of comprehensive Income tor the Company alone

Joint ventures

A ot venlure ys an entity in which the Group holds an imterest with one of more other parties where a conlraclual arrangement has
established |oint control over the entity, Joint ventures are accounted for using the aquity method of accounting. Under this method. the
Group's share of post-tax results of joint ventures 1s included n the Group s operating results in the consohdated income statement and its
Interest in thewr net assels s ncluded within investmenis in the consalidated balance sheet.

The Company provedes conslruction services to ifs joint ventures on an agency basis effectvely actng as a paying agent charging on
constructon cosls to the relevant jont venture with ne mark-up. No revenue or costs are recognised by the Company in respect of these re-
biflng transactions A managemeant fee 15 charged for this service and a consolidation adustment 18 Included i the Group financral
statements to remave the Company’s share of managernent fees earmed



TELFORD HOMES LIMITED

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2022

1 Significant accounting policies (continued}

b Revenue and profit recognition
Properties for opan market sale
Revenue and profit 1s recognised when contro| of each property has transferred to the purchaser. which 1s the pont of legal completion
Revenue is the contract price of each property net of any incentives and profit is calculated based on an assessment of the overall revenues
and costs expected on that partcular development. The assessment of tolal revenues and total costs expected on each development
reguires a degree of estmation although in the majority of cases, at the pont of handover of open market properties, the development will be
neating completion and therefore profits are more certain.

Development contracls

Revenue from contracts is recognised over tme from the date at which tt 1s considered that the customner controls the asset. For the
canstruction of open market homes sald under build ta rent contracts or for the construction of affordable homes sold to affordable housing
providers, control passes (o the customer on the date of transfer of title of the land Al this pont, revenue s split into two performance
obligations. Revenue associated walh the transfer of title of the land, which is recognised in full at this paint in time, and revenue associated
with the engaing canstruction, which is recagmsed from this point over ime

For construction revenue, in order to determine progress lowards satisfying the gontract and thus the timing and proportion of revenue to be
recognised, the input methed of measurement 18 apphed. based on resources consumed relative lo total resources expeclted to be
consumed This excludes land which relales solely to the land revenue recognised in full upon transfer of title.

Where vananhons are received. these are recognised as revenue by reference lo the stage of completion of contract activity at the balance
sheet date; these variations are not normally material to the Group.

Where the oulcame of a construction contract cannot be estimated raliably, centract revenue is recagnised to the extent of contract costs
ncurred that is probable will be recoverable. When 1t 1s probable that total contract costs will exceed lotal contract revenue , the expected loss
% recognised as an expense immediately

On the balance sheet. the Group reports the net contract postion for each contract either as an assat or labiity, A cantract represents an
asset where costs incurred plus recognised profits exceed progress biling and a contract represents a liability where the oppasite 1s the case
These are disclosed as 'Amounts recoverable on contracts' or ‘Amounts payable on contracts’, respectively

Sale of freehold interests

Revenue and profit are recognised at the paint of legal completion of each freghold interest sake

Management fees
Management fees In relation to construction services provided 16 It$ joinl venlures are recognised as revenue, as earned, within the income
statement,

Rental income

Rental ncome 1s recagnised within the income statement on the basis of amounts recevable during the year.
¢ Selling expenses

Selling expenses which are directly atinbutable to obtamning a contract are prepaid and then expensed at the tme of the corresponding
revenue and profit recognition of that contract All ether selling expenses are charged to the income statement as incurred

d Employee benefits

In accordance with IAS 19, employee benefits are recogrised as an expense n the year they are @arnad by the employee. Under the Group’s
remuneration package for Executive Directors and serior management, there is a deferred slement to be paid in future years, This deferred
element 13 recognised as an expenss over the remaining year, dependant on the employees’ continued service.

e Borrowings

Inierest bearing bank loans and overdrafis are intally measured at fair value, being proceeds received net of transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortsad cost. using the effective interest rate method

Borrowing costs directly relating to the development of properties that take 2 substantial penod of time to gel ready for sale, are capitaksed
within inventonies, Capitahsation of borrowing casts commences from the date of intial expenditure on a given develepment and continues
until the propertias are ready for sale

The capialisation of borrowing costs is suspended where there are prolonged pericds when development activity on a sie 15 interrupled.
Capitalisation s not normally suspended during a year when substantial technical and administrative wark 1s being carned out.

Al clher borrowing costs are charged to the income statement using the effective interest methed. Borrowing costs pawd are classified as
operahng activities in the statements of cash flows.



TELFORD HOMES LIMTED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2022

1 Significant ting policies (continued)

t Leased assets
At inception of a contract. the Group assesses whether a contract 15, or gonlains, a lease A contract 1s. ar contains a lease Il the contract
conveys the rght 1o control the use of an identfied asset for a penod of tme In exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
canveys the nght o control the use of an identified asset, the Group uses the defintion of a fease in IFRS 16

At commencement pr an modificabon of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease compohent of the basis of its relative stand-alene prices. However for the leases of property the Group has elected not to
separate nan-lease components and account for the lease and nonlease companents as a smgle lease component

The Group recogmises a nght-of-use asset and a lease lability at the {fease commencement date The nght-of-use asset s Inwally measured
at cost, which compnses the initia) amount of the lease hablity adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
plus apy mitial direct costs ncurred and an estimate af costs te dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restare the underlying asset
or the site on which it1s located. less any lease incentives receved

The night-of-use asset 1s subsequently depreciated using the straight-ine method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term,
unless the Jease fransfers ownership of the underlying asset 1o the Group by the end of the lease lerm or the cost of the nght-of-use asset
reflecis that the Group will exercise a purchase oplion In that case the rightof-use asset will be depreciated over the useful e of the
underlying asset which 1s determined on the same basis as thase of property and equipment. in adaition the nght-of-use assetss periodically
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certam remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liabiity is nhally measured at lhe present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencemen! date. discounied
usINg the Mierest rate IMpHct mi the lease orf that rate cannat be readily determined, the Group's Incremental borrowing rate. Generally. the
Group uses (s incremantal borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Group determines its incremental barrowing rate by obiawung interest rateg from various extemnal fnancing sources and makes certain
adjustments tg reflect the lerms of 1he lease and 1ype of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability compnsa the following-

—fixad paymenls, including in-subslance fixed payments:

— vanable lsase paymenis that depend on an index or a rate, nitially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date,

— amounis expected lo be payable under a residual value guarantee, and

— the exercise price Under a purchase aption that the Group is reasonably certain ta exercise. lease payments In an optional renewal year
the Group s reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penallies for early termination of a lease unfess the Group 1s reasonably
cerfan not 1o terminate earfy

The lease habilty 15 measured at amorbsed cost using the effeclive inlerest method. It 1s remeasured when there s a change n future Jease
payments ansing from a change in an ndex or rate, o thefi 15 a change in the Group s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee if the Group changes its assessment of whether it wall exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if
there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lsase habiny is remeasured in this way. a comresponding adjustment 1s mage 1o the camying amount of the righl-of-use asset. oris
recorded in profit or loss i the carrying amaunt of the nght-af-use asset has been reduced 1o zero.

The Group presents nght-of-use assets that do not meet the definion of investment property N “property and equipment’ and lease labilihes
In 'loans and horrowings’ 1in the statement of financial posiion

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group has elected not to recognise right-cf-use assets and lease fiabilibes for leases of low-value assets and shortterm kases. including

IT equipment. The Group recognises the lease payments assoctated with these leases as an expense oh a siraght-ine basis over the lease
erm.
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TELFORD HOMES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2022

1 Significant ting policies (continued)

g Foreign currency transiations
Foresgn currency translations arg ranslated into the functional currency using the spot exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Ahy
gains or losses are recognised In the prefit and loss account.

h Pension costs

Contrbubions pad 1o group personal pension schemes (defined contnbution), n respect of employees, are charged to the ncome stalement
as incurred

i Property and equipment
Property and equipment is stated al cost less aceumulated depreciation. Depreciation 1s provided on a siraight line basis at rates calculated to
write down the cost, less estimated residual value, of each asset over its expected useful life as follows

Leaseheld improvements - shorter of term of lease and 10 years
Equipment and machinery -210 5 years
Motor vehicles -3 years

i Goodwill
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of the consideration transferred over the farr value of net assets
acquired. Goadwll rmpairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently If events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying valué of the cash-generating unit (CGU) containing the goodwill is compared with the revoverable amount, which is
the higher of value In use and tha fair value less costs of disposal. Any imparment Is recognised immedialely as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed

x

Investments
Interests in subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures are valied at cost less impaiment.

I Business Combination
The Group accounts for business combinations an the date conirol 1s transferred to the Group and applies the acquisiion method of
accounting for business combinations. The identifiable assets acquired and liabiibes and conlingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured al the far value at the acquisiion date. Acquisition relaled costs are expensed as incurred.

m Inventories

Development properties are included in inventories and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost compnses costs of
acquisition and development, including directly atinbutable fees and expenses, direct labour costs and borrowing costs Included within
development preperties are freehold interests held in completed developments. The cost of these interests 1s estmated at intial recogmition
on Ihe basis of a multiple of annuga) ground rents and are not subsequently revalued. These are hekd for future sale

n Planning costs
Planning costs are capitalised and recognised as an asset in work i progress when there 1s probable fulure economic beneft expected to
anse from these costs.

o Current assets and liabilities
Assets that are expected to be realised in, or are intended for sake or consumption in, the Group's narmal operating cycle are treated as
current even (o the extent these are expected to be realised after 12 months from the balance sheet date Liabiliies that are expected to be
seltled n the Group's normal operating cycle are treated as current even though these may be due for seftlement after 12 months from the
balance sheet date,

p Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax cumently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 15 based on the resulls for the year Taxable results differs from net profiti{loss) as reported in the income
statement because 1 excludes items of income or expense that are tax deductible in ather years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible  The Groug's liability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted of substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

Deferred tax s recognised in respect of all tempaorary differences that have onginated bul not reversed at the balance sheet date where
transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right 1o pay less lax in the future have occurred at the
balance sheet date.

A net deferred tax asset 1s regarded as recoverabie and therefore recogmsed only when, on the basis of all avalable evidence, it can be
regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences
can be deducted

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to tems charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax 1 also deal with in equity.
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TELFORD HOMES LIMITED

NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2022

1 Si

q

1t accounting policies (

Financial instruments
Recognition and mitial measurement

Trade recevables and debt secunues 1ssued are imtially recogrised when they are onginaled All other financial assets and financiaj habilities
are initiatly recognised when the Group becames a party ta the conitractual provisians of the instrument Provisions for bad and doubtiul debts
are based on the lifetime expected credit losses, where considered to be matenal

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component} or financial hability 1s inhally measured at fair value
plus. for an tem nat at far value through prafit and loss (FVTPL) transacton costs that are directly attnbutable to s acquisition or issue. A
rade recevable withaut a significant fnancing camponent is intially measured at the transaction gnee

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On lnikial iion a i) ial agset s ¢, fied as measured al amorhsed cost, far value through other comprenensive moceme {FYQCI) —
debt nvestment; FVGCI = equity invastment: or FVYTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to thewr imial recognition unless the Group changes #s business model for managing
financial assels, N which case all affected financial assels are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting year followang the change n the
business model.

A financial asset s measured at amortsed cost if t meets both of the following condiions and 1s nat designated as at FVTPL

—itis held within a business moda| whose objective is fo hold assels to collect caniractual cash flows: ang

— Its contractual terms gva nse on speafied dates to cash flows thal are salely payments of principal and interest on the pnncipal amount
outstanding

A debt investment is measured at FVOCIf it meets both of the following conditions and 1s hot designated as at FVTPL

— 1t 15 heid within a business model whose objective 18 acheved by hoth callecting contractual cash flows and selling financal assets, and

— its gantractual terms give rse on specfied dates 1o cash flows that are solely paymems of principal and interest on the pnncipal amount
outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity Investment that is not held for trading. the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
the investment’s far vailus i OCI This efectian is made on an myvestment-by-nvastmeitt dasis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cast or FYOC! as described above are measured at FVTPL This incluges all
derwative financial assets On initial recognitien. the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements
to be measured at amortsed cosl or al FVOCH as at FVTPL if doing so elimmates or significantly reduces an accounlng mismatch that would
otherwrsé anse.

Financial assets - Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of tha abjective of the business model i which a financial agset 1s helid at a portfolio level because this best
reflects the way the business 1 managed and informahon is provided to management The infarmation considered iIncludes

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfalio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include whether management's
strategy focuses on eaming contraclual interest ncome. maintaning a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the durahon of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows thraugh the sale of the assets;

— now e perfarmanca of the portfelio s evaluated and reported ta the Group's management:

— the nsks that affect the performance of the business modei (and the financial assets held within that business Model) and how those nisks
are managed

— how managers of the business are compensated — e g, whether compensation 1 based on the far value of the assets managed or the
contractual cash flows collected, and

— the frequency. volume and tmmng of sales of financial @ssels 0 prior years, the reasons for such sales and expectations aboul future sales
activity,

Transfers of financial assets 10 third parties i transactions that do nel qualfy for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose.
consistent with the Group's continuing recogniian of the assels

Financial assets thal are held for trading or are managed and whose performance 1s evaluatad on a far value basis are measursd at FVTRL,
payments of principal and inferest
For the purposes of this assessment. ‘prncipal 1s defined as the far value of the financial asset on intal recognition, ‘Interest’ s defined as

conswderation for the time value of money and for the credit nsk associated with the principa) amount outstanding dunng a partcular year of
time and for other basi¢ lending nsks and costs [e.q Iquidity nsk and administratve costs), as well as a profit margin
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+ Significant accounting policies {rantinund}
q Financial instruments {continuad)

In assessing whather the contractual cash flows are solely payments of pnncipat and interest, the Group considers the contractual terms of
the instrumenl. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the tming ar amount of
contractual cash flows such that )f wouwld not meet this condition. Jn making this assessment, the Group considers

— contingent events that would change the ameunt or tming of cash flows,

— terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate. including variable-rate features;

— prepayment and extension fealures; and

— terms that henit the Group's claim to cash flows fram specified assets (e g non-recourse features)

A prepayment feature 15 consistent with the sole payments of principal and interest critenion 1f the prepayment amount substantially represents
unpait amounts of principal and interest on the pnncipal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable compensation for early
termination of the contract. Addiuanally. for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to Its contractual par amount, a feature that
permits or requires prepayment at an amount (hat substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest {which may also include reasonable compensation for early termination) is treated as consistenl with this criterion if the far value of
the prepayment feature 15 Insignificant at mibal recogrition.

Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financiat assets at FvTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at far value. Net gains and {osses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets al amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amartised cost using the effective interest method The amartised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and lesses and impairment are recogrised in profit ar loss. Any gain or

loss on derecognilon 1s recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FYOC!

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest ncome calculated using the effective interest method. foreign exchange gains
and losses and imparment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
("QCI"). On derecognition. gaiNs and losses accurmulated in QCl are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments af FVOCH

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recogmised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearty
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investiment. Qther net gains and losses are recegnised in OCl and are never

reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilites are classified as measured at amartised cast or FYTPL. A financial liability 1s classified as at FYTPL if ttis classified as held-
for-rading, it 1s a dervative or it is designated as such on inttal recagniion. Finaneal habilbes at FYTPL are measured at far value and net
gains and losses. including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or less. Other financial liabilties are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest methad. Interest expense and foreign exchange gans and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial assel when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it ransfers the nghts
to receive the contractual cash flows in a ransaction n which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred ar n which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the nsks and rewards of awnership and il does not retain
control of the financial asset.

The Group enters inta transaclions whereby it transfers asseis recagnised in its statement of financial positon, but retams either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised,

Financial labiities
The Group derecognises a finapcial liabiity when its contractual obhgations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Group also
derecogrises a financal labity when ts terms are modified and the cash flows of the modried liability are substanvally different. in which

case a new financial lability based on the modified terms 15 recognised at fair valie.

Cn derecognition of a financial fiability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the censideration paid (including any
non-cash assets transferred or labilities assumed) is recegmised in profit or loss,

=

Offsetling

Financial assets and financial liapilties are offset and the net amount presented in the staterment of financial posttion when. and only when
the Group currently has a legally enforceable nght to set off the amounts and 1t intends erther 1o settle them on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the hability simultaneously
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1 Signifi " 4 i cine fconti di

v Provisions for liabilities

Provisions ae made where an event has taken place that gives the Group a legal or constructive obligation that probably requires setffement
by a transfer of ecanormc beneflt, and a reliable esiimate can be made of the amount of the abhigaion

Provisions are charged as an expense to the Statement of comprehensive mncome i the year that the Group becomes aware of the
obligaton and are measured al the best estimate at the statement of financial pesmon date of the expenditurs requrred to setlle the
abhgation, taking into account refevant risks and uncertainties.

¥When payments are eventually made, they are charged ta the provisions carried in the Slatemenl of financial position

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Construction contract revenua and profit racognition

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue fram contracts with customers’ s applied to afferdable and build to rent contracts which can contribute significantly to revenue
ang profits in a financral year. As such, [udgements and estrmiations regquired as pan of contract accounting can Mave an impact o profit
racognised N each financial year and the tning profile of total profit recognised on each site.

Judgement

Revenue from development contracts Is recogrised from the point control passes and ance there IS teasonable certanty that all conditions will be
met. Judgement is required to assess the level of certainty around these condiions 1o ensure managemant 1s satisfied they will be met. For the
land element of the contract, revenue is then recognised n full when the Iransfer of ule ocews and all conditions are expected 1o be met.
Conslruction revenue |s recognised over time fram the paint of transfer of ttle and when all conditons are expected to be met This revenue 1s
recognised at a rate equivalent to the value of work undertaken 1o the development. Contract profit on jand and construction s recognised In
preportion 1o revenue anly 1o the extent that the total eventual profit on the contract £an be foreseen with reasanable cenainty

Estmation

Assessing the percentage compléte on each construchon conlract nvolves estimation of the total expected costs 1o be incurred unbl the end of
the comiract, Forecasting the total expected costs includes making assumplions regarding construction costs including cost inflaton. The earker
m the development programme, lhe grealer the level of estmaton required Due 1o the Group's experience, internal expertise and close
relationships wih subcontraclors, it 1s able to ensure these estimates are as accurale as possible Recogmition of profit also nvolves estimation
of the total expected revenues from each site and therefore the expecled profit margin that will be achieved, The expecied profit margins for
indwidual sites are updated on a regular basis and are reviewed by the Board as part of established control procedures  Estimation is required to
assess whether the total eventual profit on each conltract can be foreseen with reasonable certainty.

Carrying vaiue of land and work 1y progress

Estimauon

Inventories nclude Jand and work in progress in respect of development sites. On each development, estmation 1s required to assess whether
the cost of land and any associated wark In pragress 18 1n excess of its net reabsable value (note 13).

Frowsions
Estmation

The Group and Company 1s underaking a review of all its bulldings impacted by the Government buliding safety scheme in accordance with
Government guidelines. All buildings were signed off as compliant under relevant building regulatiohs al the tme of completions,

In Aprd 2022, the Group and Company signed the Governments building safety scheme ("the Pledge”) to carry aut or fund life criical fire satety
defects on residential towers gréater than 11 meters {or 5-stores) in England on buldings developed over the past 30 years. The Group has
committed to reimburse the Building Safety Fund and ACM Fund

The Group and Company has prowided for the cost of reimbursing the Governments for c)aims it has settled or works it has committed 25 well a5
remedial works on all properties where build issues have been identfied or it s prabable Ihat such bulld 1ssues exist

Judgement 1s required fo assess the remedafion works required. assaciated costs and timing of the remediafion spend. Managemant’s estmate
of remedialion cosls has been based on recent industry experience of the expecled costs per plot and assessing the extent of the tuiding
1ssues It has been assumed that the majarity of remediation works will be completed aver a five year penod and amounts provided have been
discounted, accordingly.

This is & complex areas and involves an assessment of the building safety 1ssues over a jarge number of properties and therefore it 15 pessible
that these esumales will changes over ume due to a number of facters, including engagng with building owners. tming for the appaintment of
buifding contractors Government fegisfation and as reguiations gvofves

Cartying value of nvestments

Estmation

Investments include interests m subsdaries and joint ventures. To determine the farr value of investments consideration 15 gven 1o thelir
underkang net assets. The undertying net assets of the subsidiares amd [aint venturas ncludes wark i progress m respect af develapment
properties and judgement is required to assess whether the cost of any associated work in progress 1S 1n excess of its net reabsable value for
these developments. This involves forecasting tolal expecled costs to complete and assumphons gn conslruction costs and inflation Recogmition
of profit nvalves an assessment of expectad total revenue and udgernent on the cerlainty around future sales pnices The Group and Company
undertake a review of foracasts on a regular basis and the impact of changes to profit margins and the recaverability of investments

Future adoption of new and ravised Standards and Interpretations

At the date of the authansation of these financial statements there are a number of standards, amendments and interpretations that haye been
published but are hot yet effective for the year ended 31 Decemper 2022 and have not been adopted early,

fManagement anfispates that all relevant pronouncements will be adapted for the first period beginfung on or after the effective date of the
pronouncemnent New Slandards amendments and Interpretatons not adopted n the current year have not been disclosed as they are not
expecled lo have 3 matepal wnpact on the Company's finangia) stalements

Duning the year the Group has adopted the follomng new and revised slandards and interpretations that have had no matenal smpact

Amendmants 1o IAS 37 {Onerous contracts ~ cost of fulfiling a sentract: requinng both incremental costs and an allocaton of other direct costs to
o€ included when performing anerous contracts assessments.
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2 Segmenta| reporting

The Group has only one reponable segment, being housebuilding 1 the United Kingdom. Financial analysis 1s presented to the chief operating decision makers of the

Group. being the Executve Committee {'EC'} and Investment Committee ({'IC'), on a site by site basis

It1s on this basis that the EC and IC makes decisions as 1o the

allocation of resources and assesses the Group s performance. The information is aggregated and presented as one repertable segment, given the sites share similar

economic characteristics-

3 Revenue

Our accounting golicies for revenie recognition on indiidual epen rarket sakes, construchon contracts and freehuld assets are oullined on page 18

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Revenus £000 £000
Indnadual open market sales revenue 51,956 51428
Centract revenue 174,713 180.812
Lard sales revenue 66,281 44 062
Commercial revenue - 4,126
Other 3,330 1,342
Total revenye 296,300 281,770
4 Expendituyre
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Expenses £000 £000
Cost of sales,
Cost of sales less impatrment of work in progress 273,167 236,184
Impairment of work in progress 21,573 22,489
Sales and marketing costs 2,17¢ 3373
Administrative costs:
Establishment, employment and other costs 37,846 36,426
Depreciation of property and equipment, ang profits on disposal 1,497 1472
Total cost of sales, administrative and selling expenses 336,253 299,944
Included n administrative casts abave is the cost of Employee Benefits, the details of which are included in note &
Included in administrative costs above 1s the fullowing in respect of Auditors rermuneration:
Year ended Year ended
3t December 2022 31 December 2021
£000 £000
Audit and related services
Statutory audit of the Company and Group financial statements 170 183
11 24

The audit of joint ventures and subsidiary accounts pursuant ta legisiation

Cther serviges including non-audit services
Qther non-audit services

Amounts payable to the Company's Auditor and their associates 1n respect of services to the Company, other than the audit of the Company's financial slatements, have

not been disclosed as the information 1s required instead to be disclosed on a consolidated basis
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5 Employee benefit expense

The average monthly number of persons emplayed by the Graup and Company, including Executive Committee members, during

the year analysed by activity was as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Number Number

Construction 85 a7
Administration 200 238
285 335

The employment casts of all employees included above were: Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021

£060 £060

Wages and salaries 26,704 25,349
Social security costs 3,355 3,289
Other pension costs - group personal pension arrangements 1,687 1,213
31,726 29,851

The proportion of employment cost capitalised as pant of construction spend on developments in progress and amortised through

costs of sales in line with profit recognition was £7,489,000 (2021: £7,900,0G60).

The Company operates a group perscnal pension scheme for its employees. At 31 December 2022 payments of £89,765 were due

to the scheme (2021: £121,020).

Key management remuneration

Key management personnel, as defined under (AS 24 (Related Party Oisclosures), have been fdentified as the Executive
Commitiee as all key decisions are reserved for the Executive Committee. These figures include the full remuneration of key

management personng| during the year.

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
£000 £000
Wages and salaries (including bonuses) 2,053 2,804
Social security costs 315 401
Other pension costs 41 63
2,409 3,268
Director's remuneration
Directors remuneration in the year was as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 Degember 2022 31 December 2021
£000 £000
Remuneration (including benefits in kind) 570 709
Amounts receivable under long term incentive schemes - 79
Company contributions to money purchase pensiocn schemes 22 37
592 825

Number of Directors who exercised share options

The informaton above includes remuneration paid to Directors from the date of appointment, and up to the date of resignation, as

applicable. For details of those serving as Directors in the year see page 1.

OCne current Director is atcruing benefits under group personal pension arrangements (31 December 2021: one}.
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6 Finance income and costs

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
£000 £000
Finance income
Interest income on short term bank drpnsits 29 <)
Net foreign exchange rates changes - 248
Other interest income 183 699
212 951
Finance costs
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts, and similar charges {1,274) {85)
Amortisation of facility fees (29) (747)
Net foreign aexchange rates changes (128) -
Interest expense for leasing arrangements under IFRS 16 (158} (180)
{1,589) {1,012)
Net finance costs {1,377) (61)
Further information on borrowings is given in note 17.
7 Taxation
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
£000 £000
Corporation tax on profits for the year 58 1,375
Adjustment in respect of prior years 345 61
Total current taxation expense 403 1,436
Deferred taxation (note 12) (39,864) {4,009}
Income tax credit (39,461) (2,573)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The tax credit assessed for the year is higher (2021: lower) than the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate
applicable to losses of the consalidated entities. The differences are explained below:

Loss befare income tax (192,615) (14,243)
Loss an ordinary activities before taxation at the rate of corporation tax (36,597) (2,706)
Effects of:

Joint ventures results reported net of tax (251} (45)
Adjustment in respect of prior years 345 61
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,945 366
Tax relief on land remediation costs {17} (19)
Adjustment to losses carried forward - (230)
Profits taxable at deferred tax rate (4.888) -
Income tax (credit) (39,461) (2,573)

The applicable tax rate was 19.0% (2021: 19.0%).

Deferred tax expected to reverse has been calculated at rates between 19% - 25% expected to apply in the United Kingdom on

reversal of the underlying timing differences (2021: 19%).

Factors that may affect future tax years

An increase in the UK corparation rate from 19% to 25% (effective 1 April 2023) was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021. This
will increase the company's future current tax charge accordingly and increase the deferred tax asset.

8 Dividend paid
For the year ended 31 December 2022 there is no final dividend proposed (2021: £Nil}.
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3 Goodwiil
Gompany
£l

Jeruary 2621

Nt carryia amownt at
Imparment af goodwil
Net caimang amount at 31 December 2021
Impamgn of gooswil

t carfying amount at 31 Becombe¥ 2072 - -

Goorwl arose Aunng 'he year enced 31 March 2016 as a resudt of (he acquisnnn of the regenesabion nusiness vam Uniteg House Developments (LHD,

10 Investments

Company
" 3 Dacember 2022 31 Decamber 2021
£060 000

A1 31 December valued at cost 23.037 23037

The signficant subsdiary wndertak ngs of Me Gronug compnie

Share of ordinary
zapital heid by the

. : __Groun Gountry of registration Accounting date Principal actvity
Islangd Gardens Limied 106% England 31 December Propery developmenl
Telord rigmes Regenaratian Devalopments Hokiogs Limited 100% Emgland 31 Ducamper  Property develapment
Tetfard Homesy Babron “awers Limnes 100+, England 31 December  Property developinant
Tufiord Homes City North cimited 1005 England 31 Ducember  Propery develomment
Telford Homes Chsp Strest Lunited 100% England 31 Ducember  Praperty devekipment
Crnsp Stregt Devapprients Luv tod 007 Eagland 31 Ducember  Property deveksmment
Gations Limired 100% Engiang 31 Docomber  Property develament
Telforsd Momes [Ifernational Wayy Limted 100% England 31 Decemiper Froperty develapment
TeMord Homes IMdsummer Bldy No 1 Lirited 100% England 31 December  Propeny develapmeant
Teltord Homes (Miagsumrer Bla) No 2 Lim ted 1005 England 31 Decomber  Propary development
Tefford Momes LEB Limted W England 31 Oecomber  Property deveksment
Teftord Homes (Alpartan No 11 Limed 100% England 31 December Propety development
Teltord Homes (Ml Roza ) Limitca 100% Frglang 31 December  Propesty development
Tetiord Homes (Radan Sireel) Limited et Frglarg 31 December  Property develsment
Teftord Homes Norih Acton] Ne 1 Limited 100% England 31 December  Property develapment
Teltorsd Homas (Rerume dniaings) Limitea 150% Jersey 41 Decembes _ Propenty development

The Directars have taven advantage of e ecempuon avalabie under Sector 4794 uf the Companes At 2008 relaung v me requrement ‘o lhe augn of movadual accaunts far the Group s subsiaiary underakings

Group Group Company Company
Investients i jGint ventures 31 December 2022 31December2021 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
£400 EQO0 EROO £000

At 31 Dacember valued at cost A7.847 61779 - -

Investments in Jont vantures

Tre [t ventures which prncipally aftect prafils ard nut assets of the Gown Lempr 58

Share of ordinary
capital haid by the
Group_Country of registration Accounting date Fnncipal actvity

Cnabham Farm Marth LS 50% Englana 31 Marcn  Propesty devekepment
S1 Leoraryy Deweippmants LLE 0% Enaierdd 31 Decembar  Proparty developmant
City North (Teffurd Homes, Linited 50°¢ England 31 Decemour  Proparty devaloprient
Armada 1 Sauth Developmant LLP 504, Englang J1March  Prapariy devekpment
Gallens 28 Devakpment LLP 5 Enaland 31 Marcn  Property develonment
Balfron Tower Devetopmants LLP 25 Enatand 31 December  Proparty develoon em
One Two Four Brentfora LLP 504 England 31 Degemoer Proparty gevelopment

There nave been no addiens or dspesak of muestments n it veniures during tne year endea 31 Deeemper 2122 sxcept ‘Or the Acawsion af 2 50% nferest n Gre Two Four Brenfurd LR in February 2022
AUl st of subSidiary andertakings and uint venturss not discksed within s note 5 rekided or page 16
Inves'monts n jant ventures are accousted for under the sautty Metrod Tee Anancial nform alam of the Jairs verkires 5 sum war sed bk and réconciied Lo the Group balance sheet

St Laonards.

Armada 1 South Gallions 2B Chobham Farm Deveiopments Batfron Towar Chy North {Teliord
DevelopmantLLP Devaloprment LLP Narth LLP LLP  Devalopments LLP Homes} Limited  One Two Four LLP Total
¥ear wnded 31 December 2022 . EDGA E00D E0Q0 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue 3555 758 75a - - 22985 20763
Oeerating profitiass| B gz 375 124 B14) 128y 1220 -
Finarce ncoms - - - 818 - . -
&1, {1481 - -

Frmarce expense B R
Profiuikss| before fax A% 2 375 23 9va; 7238 3220 -

Ireome tax credi - . 1285, -
Curert assats 230 a4 et 7208 - 35578 58 206 %5

Cash 1253 519 15 a7 16354 3

Curren: labtes rate and Jiher payaDks 1840y 118 112,602, 143582 149

Currert lgbites giner - - - 130,745, - -

Amonrvs due ity from Terbers . 2153 Tas . 40 892, 12796 -

Net asseistiabift ext } 5256 3089 27624 43497 .

Rerm e DNl ven-re Darinars. snare of Irat assets, Iapkies. ‘2 842, jaag, §+.3a5) sa2° 1331% 145 524 . 128252
Remnve snare of aMounts due (o {TTom ain yenfure parners -~ T 5025 arz - 18 342 20541 . a5 857
Consoldation adisiments 21 744

347

Investmerna i jpint voiture:
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10 Investments {cOntinued)

Gations LB

Chgbham Farm

St Leanards
Developinents

Baltron Tower

Gity North (Telford

Armade 1 Duath

Oevelopment LLP Developtent LLP North LLP LLP  Devolopments LLP Homas} Limited  One Two Four LLP Tatal
Year andud 31 Decambar 2021 £000 £000 E000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenus 16 602 8,254 1,248 - 18 376 - 44450
Queralina profiitoss) 4002 1024 426 i1 [RE: 3 RA0 - 916/
Finance ncome - - - 1,566 - LRl . 1577
Fnance expense - 48] 3 - 1280: e - [EXa N
Erofivoss) befors oy 4,002 978 425 1.557 1436 3889 - was
Income tax credi - - . - - 12 958) - (2,958]
Current assels 5 596 5 628 2599 23 983 76231 - 214 D55
Cash 1563 & 280 ns 24 AT - A
Currant kabiites rade and ofher payabkes 12141 19 900 ] 11 (20 88%1 - 719031
Cunidt habibiv b - {567, - - - - 128 2341
Araounts due towirem members 8492 110 485) 400 P16 0a2y (13062 -
Nat assalsiiatiftias, 13437 974 344 795 44515 -
Rermeve joml welllife pariners shars of (et e 16 71§) 487 {1,707 \3 97T 2 762 145 107} - 156 2351
Reroue share of amaunts due to(fram| joint venmure pariners 13 248 5232 1200 aoa 4 003 37 936 - 51,750
Remmave pre-acquis ton reserves - - - - - 15851 - 1561
Consoldaton adjustments 57 1312) i3) 11635 {523} 1587 - \2949)
invastments in joy ventures. 4,047 5,407 1.504 10,363 2,566 38892 - 53,779

The mancial mfarMation abowe for joint ventures 1s presented after hawing heer aligred to the Grog's swcounting pohcies

The Company has recewed distibubions from jont ventures and subsdianes of £350.000 for the year ended 31 Decemper 2022 2021 £17 503 747}

Atter removing he share of ioint venturés tat o

11 Propery and squipment

nad By the CrREup dind voisublalion awlUusiments Ihe share of results of wint ventures figurs INclutied m the Group noeme statemer

nt for |he year ended 33 Decernber 2022 s £1 357 0042021 £3 992,000,

Leaseholkd Laazahotd Equipmant and Mator

Group and Company praperty v vehicles Totat

B . £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
A1 January 2021 4,589 2199 2296 967 10951
Additions - - a1 510 53
Al 31 December 2091 4,589 2199 2377 1477 19 642
Addnoas . - 50 258 121 . 429
Al 31 December 2027 4,589 2,243 . 2.535 1538 11,071
Dapraciation
At january 2621 107 -.300 1050 818 3986
Charge 581 162 ags 299 1537
A1 31 Decerber 202~ 1,598 T 462 1 H4d 917 5523
Charge o 568 142 _..._515 322 . 1 645
AL31 Decermber 2077 - - 2164 1604 2,061 1.239 7.068
et baok valus
A1 31 Ducerr bar 203+ _ 2w 727 a3- 360 5119
At 31 Deceamber 23z - 2 425 645 574 358 4.003
Inciuded i The above aie nght-of.use assels over the foltvng £000
Leaseiol property 2425
Matar verichos 359

The nghi-of-us? assels ars Nchuded 1IN the SaME Ine d8m 3% where The COMEsSPONNg LAEMYING ASSElS wolkl be pressnted If Ihey ware owned Depreciaton capialsed within devalopments m progress was 148 000 (2021 £66 060
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12 Deferred income tax

Group [ Company

3D 31D 2021 31 Dacember 2022 31 December 2021

£000 £000 £000

Deferred 1ax assets 5.602 45180 4.599
Deferred tax |iabiltes 612 207 180
eferrad tax assets 4,990 ki 4,405

As permitted by IAS 12 {Incoma Taxes), certan deferred tax assets and Jabiibes have been offsei 38 they anse in the same tax junsdiction and are settled on a net

Deferred tax assets have been recogmsed (o the exlent these with be utiised by CBRE Group or where 11 1s expacted that there will be taxaple profits in future years
from which the reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducled

There are no unrecognised deferred tax assets or liablibes.

The mavement on the deferred income tax account s as lollows

31D 2022 310 ber 2021 31 December 2022 31 December 2021

£000 £900 £000 £000

Brought forward 4,990 B&Z 4.408 748

Surrender of group relef (1,761} - {1.761) -

Crethted 1o the Incorne statement 39,864 4.009 42,325 3445

Recoghised through eurrent incorme tax lability - 289 - 166
43, 590 .97 4,

The moverent In deferred fax assets and ilabiiies duning the year 13 as foffows

Group
Gapital Losses carried Fair value Other temporary
allowances forward adjustments differences Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
AL 1 January 2021 113 2.458 {289} (1.500) 682
Cradited {charged) to the mcome statement 38 2,694 - 1.277 4,009
Recognised through current income tax liatnlity - 299 - - 299
At 31 December 2021 151 5,451 §289) {323) 4,990
Surrender of group relef - 11761) - - {1.761)
Credited/{charged) 1o the iIncome statement 57 42,848 - {3.041) 39,864
At 37 Dacember 2422 208 38,578 {289} {2,364} 43,053
Company
Capital Losses carried IFRS 15 Other temporary
allowances forward restatement differances Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
At1 January 2021 113 1542 - (857} 798
{Charged} credriad 10 the ntome statement 28 2,740 - 667 3.445
Recegnised through current income tax liabibt: - 166 - - 166
At 31 December 2021 151 4,448 - (190 4,409
Surrender of group rehef - (1761} - (1,761}
Credited/{charged) ta the ncome statement 87 42,285 - {17) 42326
£ 3T Dacember ¥ ~ 07} 97,
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13 Inventories

Group Group Company Company

31 December 2022 31 December 2021 31 December 2022 31 December 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000

Development properties 175,494 227,275 101,004 161,890

All Inventories are considered to be current in nature. The operating cycie 1$ such that a proportion of inventories will not be realised within 12 months. It 1s not possible 1o
determine with accuracy when specific inveniory will be realised as this will be subject to a number of 1ssues such as consumer demand and the timing of planning

permissions.

Included within development properties for the Greup and Company are freehald interests held for future sale of £8,303,000 (2021: £8,303.000). During the year ended 31
December 2022 the Group recognised £nit of new freehold interests and disposed of £nil freehold interests {2021: £nil new freehold interests recognised and disposed of £nil
of freehold interests).

The value of inventories expensed 1n cost of sales by the Greup In the year ended 31 Decembar 2022 was £267,480,000 (2021: £234 598,000). Costs capialised by the
Group during the year include interest of £356.000 {2021: £1,924,000). which 1$ capitalised based on the site specific cost of borrowings,

During the year the Group conducted a review of the net realisable value of its invenltories, Where the estimated net realisable value has changed due to movements in cost
and revenue estimates and this was less than the carrying value within the balance sheet, the Group has written down the value of inventories. The total amount recognised

as an expense was £21,573,000 (2021: £21.872.000).

14 Trade and other receivables

Group Group Company Company
31 December 2022 31 December 2021 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
E£000 £000 £000 £000
Current receivables
Amounts recoverable on cantracts 100,114 68,402 75,371 64 792
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 1761 - 87.714 56,677
Amounts owed by joint ventures 13,447 20.779 41.025 72,575
Trade recevables 32 27 3z 27
Other receivables 4,451 9,500 5.884 12.613
Prepaymenis and accrued income 14,433 9,800 4370 4,523
134,238 108,508 214,396 211,207
The Group and Company does not consider the impact of expected credit losses to be materal.
Amounts recoverable on contracts
Total contract revenue of £174 714,000 (2021: £180,812.000) has been recognised by the Group in the year.
in relabien to contracts in progress at the balance sheet date:
Group Group Company Company
31 December 2022 31 December 2021 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Contracts where costs incurred plus recognised profits exceed 100,114 68,402 75,371 64,792
recelpts to date included in receivables
Contracts where receipts 10 date exceed costs incurred plus {4.896) {5,905} - {1.009)
recognised profits included in payables (note 16)
95,218 62497 75,371 63,783
Total costs incurred plus recognised profit an contracts 720,873 630,907 603,687 583,234
Receipts to date {625,655) (568.410) (528,316} {519,451}
95,218 62,497 75,31 63,783

At 31 December 2022, retentions held by customers for contract work performed by the Group included within amounts recoverable an contracts amounted to £10,558,525

(2021: £8.262.000).

15 Cash and cash equivalents

Group Group Cempany Company

31 December 2022 31 December 2021 31 December 2022 31 December 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cash balances 4,337 38,348 4.302 38,113
Bank overdraft repayable on demand (6,446) - (6,446) -
Cash and ¢ash equivalents in the statement of cash flows (2,109) 38,348 (2,144) 38,113
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16 Trade and other payables

Group Group Company Company
31 December 2022 31 December 2021 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Current payables
Trade payables 18,850 21,812 18,315 21,302
Amounts due to Group undertakings - 486 7,378 5415
Amounts due to joint ventures - - 1.452 3,460
Amounts payable on contracts {note 14} 4,896 5905 - 1.009
Deposits received in advance 73 341 73 341
Social security and other taxes 2711 2,676 2.796 2875
Accrued expenses 100,286 42,427 114.577 59.705
126,816 73,647 144,589 94 908
Accrued expenses includes an amount of £40 million to be refunded to the Government for payments made under the Building Safety Fund.
Non current
Due in mare than one year and less than five years
Accrued expenses 863 1,489 177 867
Total trade and other payables 127,684 75,136 144,766 95,775
17 Borrowings
Group Group Company Company
31 December 2022 31 December 2021 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Bank loans - 43,096 - 43,096
Transaction costs - {24) - {24}
. 43,072 - 43,072
Finance lease liabilities (see below) 3,319 4,128 3,319 4128
Total borrowings 3,319 47,200 3,319 47,200
Further information on borrewings is given in nate 20.
Finance lease fiabilities are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:
Finance lease liabilities
Group Group Company Company
31 December 2022 31 December 2021 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Current 924 905 924 905
Non-current 2,395 3,223 2.395 3.223
3,318 4,128 3.319 4,128

18 Share capital

Group and Company

31 December 2022
£000

31 December 2021
£000

Allotted, called up and fully paid

935,850,669 ordinary shares of 10p each (2021, 835,950 669)

93595

93,595

All shares rank equally in respect of shareholder rights_
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19 Related party transactions
The Beard and certain members of senior management are related parties within the definition of IAS 24 (Related Party Disclosures).

Property purchases by Directors of Telford Homes Limited

There have been no transactions between key management personnel and the Group other than remuneration in the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: none).

Transactions between the Group and its jeint ventures

The amounts due from joint ventures 1o the Group for trading balances at 31 December 2022 totalled £13,447,000 (2021: £20,773,000). A
total of £41,025,000 was owed to the Company at 31 December 2022 from jeint ventures (2021: £37,659,000). The Company owed joint
ventures £1,452,000 at 31 December 2022 (2021: £3,460,000).

The Company has invoiced joint ventures £37,837,000 in the year to 31 December 2022 for construction services and marketing costs (2021:
£28,945,000}. The Company was invoiced £4639,000 by joint ventures in the year to 31 December 2022 (2021 £nil). Amounts invoiced to joint
ventures for management fees included within invoiced amount above, which have been recognised in the Group income statement, totalled
£2,504,000 in the year to 31 December 2022 (2021: £712,000).

Amounts between i} the Group and joint ventures and i) the Company and its subsidiaries are non-interest bearing and are repayable when
the counterparty has sufficient cash to repay the lcans.

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are relaled parties, have been eliminated on consolidation, The amounts
owed by subsidiaries to the Company at 31 December 2022 totalled £85,953,000 (2021: £56,677,000) and the Company owed subsidiaries
£7.376,000 (2021: £5929,000).

The Company has invoiced subsidiaries £17,160,000 in the year to 31 December 2022 for construction services (2021: 4,895,600). The
Company has been invoiced £nil in the year to 31 December 2022 by subsidiaries (2021: £8,603,578).

Joint vertures and subsidiaries do not transact with each other.

As at 31 December 2022 the company owed CBRE £nil (2021: £17,800,000).

Control

Throughout the year the immediate parent company of the Group was CBRE Evergreen Acquisition Co. 2 Limiled, and the ultimate parent
company was CBRE Group, Inc.
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20 Financial instruments

Categones of financial assets and financial habilties are as follows

Group Group Company Company
31 Decembaer 2022 31 December 2021 31 Decembar 2022 31 Dacember 2021
F000 £000 £000 E000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 1,761 - 87.714 56,677
Amounts owed by joint ventyres 13,447 20779 41.025 72,575
Amounts recoverable on contracts 100,114 68,402 75371 64,792
Trade receivables 32 27 az 27
Ctner receivables 4.451 .500 5,884 12,613
Cash and cash equivalents 4337 38 348 4,302 38,113
124, 142 137,056 214,328 244,797
None of these financial assats are either past due or Impaired.
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Ameunts due {e Group undertakings - 486 7376 6.415
Amounts due to joint ventures . - 1452 3.460
Trade payables and accrued expenses 120,004 65,728 133 069 21874
Bank loans and overdraft 6 4486 43,698 B8 448 43,096
126,450 109,310 143,343 134,845

Trade and other and trade pay

The far value of trade and other receivables, amounts owed by and to Group undertakings and joint ventures, amounts receverable on contracts, kade payables and land credtars at 31
December 2022 1s equal o the carrying value stated n the balance sheet at that date, There are no signiicant amounts included within trade and other receivables which are currently
overdue and not provided against (31 December 2021 £nif).

Borrowings
On 4 June 2021 Teiford Homes Limited agreed an unsecurad promissory note of £150 million with CBRE  Interest)s paid at a rate of 2.20% plus 3 month SONIA. As at 31 Decembar 2022
Telford Homes Limited had ytlised End of the facilty (2021 £17.8 million)

On 23 Oclober 2020 Telford Homes Limited signed a £38 million developmen: loan facility with Naticnal Westminster Bank PLC which extends to April 2023, Interest 1S payable an the loan
at a rate of 3.15% plus SONJA, The laan was fully repaid dunng the year (2021 E25 3 million was utilised),

On 22 February 2017 the Group's joint venlure Balfron Tawers Development LLP signed a £33.0 milkon development loan facility with RBS | Dunng September 2020 the faciily was
ncreased (o £36.63m and in May 2022 the facility was extended to 31 July 2023, Imerest 1 payable on the loan at a rate of 4.00% pius SONIA. As at 31 December 2022 Balfron Towers
Develapment LLP had utihised £30,745.000 (2021 £27 668.000) of this facility

On 14 July 2021 the Groups joint venture Galions 28 Development LLP signed a £33 0 milion develepment Joan facdity with Netting Hill Genesis. Interest 1s payable on the loan at a rate of
3.40% plus SONIA. As at 31 December 2022 Gallions 2B Development LLF had utihsed £1.098.000 (2021 E£567,000) of this facility

All bormowings are treated ag current, except finance lease due after more than one year For all borrowings faw vaiue 1s matenally equivalent 10 the ong:nal book value
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20 Financial instruments {continued)

Market risk
The Graup 15 exposed ta the financial risk of changes in interest rates both in terms of changes i the base rate and SONIA and in terms of individual banxs attitude to market nsk and thei
application of enther base rate or SONIA to new faciibies and the margin applied to each new facility.

In order to assess the risk. interest costs are forecast on a monthly basis over a five year period using estimates of lkely changes In rates and actual costs are compared with this forecast.
Volatilly of interest costs remainad at an acceptable 'evel in the year ended 31 December 2022, Interest en all faclities currerdly held 15 charged at floating interest rates despite an the
increase i ihe rate of SONIA due 1o relatively short penad remaming on alt loans. The Group assesses lhe requirement far fixing inlerest rales on a regular basis.

Capital risk
The Group's objectives when manag.ng capial are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a gong concern, In order to provide relurns ‘or shareholgers and meet its liabilities as they
fall due. whilst mantaining an appropriate capital structure ta reduce the costs of capital. The Group considers its capital to be all of the companents of equity and borrowings.

The Group ensures that there are apprepriate controls over the purchase of land and levels of work in progress in the business in arder to appropnately manage s capital. In addtion, the
ather mathods by which the Growp can manage its short-term and long-term c¢apital structure include adjusting the level of ordinary dividends paid and afranging debt cluding through the
wider CBRE Group

Cradit risk

Credii rsk 15 lhe risk of financ.al loss whare counterparties are not able ta meet therr cbligations,

Trade and other receivables includes amounts recoverable on contracts wh ¢h are due from housing associatkons, build to rent investors and balances due from other Group undertakings.
The Group considers the credit quality of the various debtors ta be goad in respect of the ameunts culstanding and therefore credit nsk 1s considered o be low

Surplus cash s neld in secure bank deposit aceounts with NatWest and Bank Mendes Gans.

Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group does not have suffident financial resources to meet its abligauons as they fall due.

The Group manages iiguidity nsk by continuously monitoring forecast and aclual cash flows over a five year period and performing sensitivity analysis on these forecasts The farecasls are

necessanly subject to a number of assumptions and judgements and these are tested on 2 reasonable basis by the sensilivity analysis. These forecasls and ihe related sensilvity analysis
are reviewed by the Directers in detail on a monthly basis, The current forecasts show posilive cash balances heyond the next 12 months even where this 1s subjected to sensiivity testing.

Liguielity nsk 1s further mitigated owing to the suppor avaiabie through CBRE Group

The matunty profile of the anbaipated future cash flows based on the sarliest date on which the Group can be required io pay fimancial liabilities on an undiscounted basis (including future
interest payments using the latest applicable rates} s as follows

Trade payables

and accrued Borrowings Total

expanses and overdraft
£000 £000 £000
Within one year 119,136 7,429 126.565
More than one year and less than two years 868 807 1.675
Mora than hwo years and less than five years - 1,884 1.884
31 December 2022 120,004 10,120 130,124

Trade payables

and accrued Berrowings Total

axpenses and overdraft
£000 EQDD £000
Within one year 64,725 44 167 108,892
More ihan ane year and less than twe years 1,489 1,022 2,511
More than two years and less than five ysars - 24395 2,495
31 December 2021 66214 47,684 113,838

The matunty profile of the anhaipated future cash flows based on the earliest date o which the Company can be required to pay financial labilties on an undiscounted basis (Including future
imerest payments using the latest applicable rates) s as foflows:

Trade payables

and accrued Borrowings Total
BXPANses
£000 £000 £000
Within ane year 141,720 7,429 149,149
More than ane year and less than two years 177 807 284
More than two years and less than five years - 1.884 1,884
31 December 2022 141.897 10,120 152,017
Trade payables
and accrued Borrowings Total
expenses
£000 £000 £000
Within one year 90 B82 44 167 135.049
More than one year and |ess than two years 867 1.022 1.889
More than two years and less than five years - 2,495 2.495
31 December 2021 91,749 47 634 139,433
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21 Provisions

Building safety

Provision

EQO00

AL 1 January 2022 -
Additions 99,885
At 31 December 2022 99,865
Group Group Company Company

31 Dacembar 2022 31 December 2021 31 December 2022 31 December 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000

Currem 10,807 - 10 867 -
Non-current 85,958 - 88 958 -
$9.865 - 99,865 -

The huilding safety provision represents the Group and Company's best cstimate of the remediation works on all propertics where buld issues have been dentiied or it 1s probable that sueh build issues exist The
pravision has oeen made in accordance with Government guidetines and recent industry expenience. This amount excludes knawn amounts that the Company will refund 1o the Governmert for paymeants made under

me Bullding Satety Fund (rote 18}

22z Operating leases

Future renals 2 under Nor: aperating leases are as follows.
Group Group Company Company
31 December 2022 31 December 2021 31 Decamber 2022 31 December 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Whiikin ane year 1.006 1000 - -
1-2 years 341 38 - -
2-3 years 623 748 - -
3-4 years 579 542 - -
4-5 years 517 509 - .
Qver five years 1.718 1663 - -
5.285 5,358 - -

23 Gommi and g il

Commitmenis

At 31 Dacember 2022 the Group 2nd Company nad £nil commilinents “or fuluse mimmum lease payments under non-cancellable cperalrg leases (2021 £nil)

The Group 1n the narmal course of business has given guaranteas In respect of the Group's share of centain contractLal obigations of joint ventures

24 Post balance sheet events

In February 2023 the Groud Increased i1s holding in St Leonards Developments UL P from §0% to 100%.

The Group signed the governmenls build.ng safety contract in March 2023 1o remediale buldings n accardance with the building safety pledge signed in May 2022 The Graup and Compary continue to undertake a
revew of all its bu ldmgs in accordance with Gavernment guidetines to assess lifecrucal fre safely issues The current best estimate of the costs of these remediation works, for which @ provisians has been made n

the financial statements, 1s £130.0 milion fsee nole 27},

2%. Other significant intarests

The subsidiary underakings and Joint ventures not disclosed in note 10 n which Telford Homes Limited holds @ signifcant inierest at 3° Decemnber 2022 are set out below

Share of ardinary capital hel¢
(direct/indirect)

Country of registration

Accounting date

Principal activity

droadway Chambers Management Ljm ted 100%
Chrsp Street Management Limited 100%
Greenford Block 3 Managemert Company Limred 100%
\anhattan Plaza Maragement Lim.jed 100%
Stone Studios Managemeart Limitey 100%
Stratford Central Maragement Limtea 100%
CFN Management Lomited 50%
City North Finsbury Park Lirmited 50%
Caty North Finsbury Park Residential Management Campany Limited 507
City Narth Iskrgton Limited 50%
3al'ton Tower Maragemenl Compary Limited 25%

Ergland
Ergiand
Ergland
Ergiand
Ergland
Ergland
Ergland
Ergiand
Ergland
Erglan
Erglana

30 .une

28 February
31 Octoper
31 March

30 September
31 March

31 August

31 December
31 March

31 March

30 April

Property management
Property management
Property management
Property management
Property management
Property management
Property management
Property development
Property maragement
MNon-rrading company
Property management

All the above includmg those disclased in nate 10 are registerad al Telord House Qlueensgate, Brilanria Roac Waltham Cross Hertfordshire ENB 7TF witn the excaption of Ciiy North Istrgtan Limited wheh s
registered at The Business Jesign Certre 52 Upper Streel Islington Green Landon, N1 00H Telford Homas (Perfume Holangs) Lirited which s registered in Jarsey and Cnobram Farm North LLP Armada 1 South
Development LLP and Gallons 25 Developmert LLP which are all registered at Bruce Kennck House 2 Kell ck Streer, Londor N1 SFL

Telford Homes ‘Alpertan) Limeted ang Tel‘ord {Stratford Managemerl: Limited were disposec of qunng tne sear enoed 31 December 2022
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